
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, March 27, 2024 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     https://bit.ly/3Vn4DaE  
Remote Public Comment Sign-Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

Music In Our Schools – Kamiakin Scarlet & Gold 5:15 – 5:30 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       GABE GALBRAITH 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Special Recognition    
A. Music In Our Schools Month  DR. TRACI PIERCE 
B. School Retirees Appreciation Week  
C. Winter Sports and Activities MATT SCOTT 

  
4. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
5. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Meeting March 13, 2024 
 

Human Resources Reports 
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
B. Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2023 – 2024 
 
Business Office Items 
A. Budget Status Report Ending February 29, 2024 
B. Payroll and Vouchers Ending February 29, 2024 
 
Teaching and Learning Reports  
A. Recommendation Instructional Material 

 
6. Communications Follow Up 

 
7. Superintendent/Board Member Report 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F3Vn4DaE&data=05%7C02%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7C8f88f6c390684d61ecae08dc48260a65%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638464575422390870%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XzvLjMG%2FonMcsjv%2FUaKGU6jlcmfAcFX02laK9FVuaoo%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

 
8. Reports and Discussions 

A. 2024-25 Preliminary Budget  VIC ROBERTS 
B. Asset Preservation/Capital Projects Update  RYAN JONES 
 

9. Unfinished Business 
None 
 

10. New Business 
A. Transportation – Annual Bus Purchase  APRIL HEISER 
B. K-5 Math Adoption Recommendation ALYSSA ST. HILAIRE  

 
11. Next Meeting Agenda 

A. 2024 – 2025 Preliminary Budget 
B. Annual Staff/Human Resources Update 
C. Highly Capable Program Update 
D. Second Step Digital Materials  

 
12. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
13. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

 Administration Building 
March 13, 2024 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Gabe Galbraith, President of the Board; Micah Valentine, Vice 
President of the Board; Brittany Gledhill, Legislative Representative of the Board; Dr. 
Josh Miller, Board Member; Mike Connors, Board Member; and Dr. Traci Pierce, 
Superintendent and Secretary of the Board.  
 
Cabinet Members: Alyssa St. Hilaire, Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; 
Vic Roberts, Executive Director of Business Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive 
Director of Communications and Public Relations.  
 
Excused: Annie Maltos, Student Board Member-Elect 

Mallory Dupaquier, Student Representative 
Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education 

              Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology   
 
Other Guest(s):  Dr. Bill Jordan, Northwest Leadership Associates 

Sergio Hernandez, Northwest Leadership Associates 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith called the meeting to order at 5:36 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 49 online and in-person staff and guests. 
 
RECOGNITION 
 
 National Music in Our Schools Month 

 
Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce thanked Teri Glasford, Orchestra Teacher at Chinook 
Middle School, and the Chinook Wolfpack 8th grade Orchestra, who performed before 
the Board meeting in recognition of National Music in Our Schools Month.  

 Education Support Professionals Month 
 

Superintendent Dr. Pierce read Governor Inslee’s proclamation declaring March 2024 as 
Education Support Professionals Month and played a video celebrating KSD Education 
Support Professionals. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 Dottie Stevens commented on students having a voice and appreciated Mallory 

Dupaquier, the Student Board Representative, for expressing her views and the students 
she represents. 

 
 Amy Payson commented that she opposes the district cutting mental health services.  



Minutes 
March 13, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 Diane Sundvik commented on the Healthy Youth Survey and the importance of keeping 

on-site mental health counselors. 
 
 Mary Jo Wilkins commented that she opposes the district cutting mental health services. 
 
 Rachel Labell commented on the importance of keeping mental health services. 
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Dr. Josh Miller to approve the consent items as presented.  
 
 Seconded by Micah Valentine. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Ms. Gledhill  Yes 
     Dr. Miller  Yes 
     Mr. Connors  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular Board Meeting February 28, 2024 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated and Extracurricular 
• Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2023 - 2024 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FOLLOW UP 
  
 None 
 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 
 Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce reported visiting Chinook Middle School, Horse Heaven 

Hills Middle School, and Lincoln Elementary School. She attended the ESD 123 Crystal 
Apple Awards ceremony and formerly presented the 2024 KSD Crystal Apple Award to 
Kaycee Ferguson, a 6th-grade English Language Arts teacher at Chinook Middle School. 
Dr. Pierce shared that tonight is the regional high school art award ceremony. She stated 
that she visited the exhibit last week at Columbia Basin College and made her selection 
for the Superintendent’s Choice Award.  Dr. Pierce noted that Matt Scott, Assistant 
Superintendent of K-12 Education, will award our student in her place tonight. She also 
shared that earlier today, she met with Mallory Dupaquier, Student Representative to the 
Board, and Annie Maltos, Student Representative-Elect, to talk about how things are 
going with the new model put in place this year, which has a student board representative 
and representative-elect. Dr. Pierce stated that both Mallory and Annie had good 
reflections and feedback on how to modify things for next year. She also stated that 
information and applications for the 2024-25 student board representative-elect would be 



Minutes 
March 13, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 

publicized soon, as the application due date is May 15. 
 
 Board Member Josh Miller shared that he attended the Future Chefs Competition. 
 
 Board Member Brittany Gledhill reported visiting Amon Creek Elementary, Kamiakin High 

School, Hawthorne Elementary, Lincoln Elementary, and Chinook Middle School. She also 
stated that she attended the Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council meeting this 
morning and reviewed candidates for the deputy successor superintendent position. 

 
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported reviewing candidates for the deputy successor 

superintendent position and attending the Future Chef Competition. He thanked community 
members who contacted him and engaged in meaningful conversation. 

  
 President Gabe Galbraith reported attending the Future Chef Competition. Mr. Galbraith 

also provided clarification on a topic previously raised during public comment, sharing that 
the F-1 filings on completed on an annual basis, like taxes, and are due on April 15.  

   
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Enrollment Analysis 
  

Superintendent Dr. Pierce reported that during the last budget presentation, the Board asked 
for a follow-up analysis of the current enrollment situation, trends, and influencing factors. 
She reviewed the difference between Headcount and Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) 
enrollment and apportionment, shared statewide enrollment trends, and explained 
Kennewick enrollment trends.  

 
 Legislative Update 
  

Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce presented highlights from the 2023-24 legislative 
session, which ended on March 7. She reported on key funding items connected to the 
Board’s legislative priorities and provided an update on funding bills passed during the 
session. Dr. Pierce noted that the Board would receive budget presentations throughout 
March, April, and May and see the impact of key legislation on the district budget.  
 

 General Fund 2023-24 & 2024-25 Preliminary Budget Information 
  

Executive Director of Business Operations Vic Roberts presented information on the 
current 2023-24 and preliminary 2024-25 General Fund budget. Financial challenges 
associated with projected lower student enrollment and reduced levy equalization funding 
were discussed. It was explained that current staffing levels have been maintained with 
COVID relief funding during a time of lower enrollment and lost revenue from the levy 
failure. COVID relief funding will be entirely spent at the end of the 2023-24 school 
year. Programs funded by COVID relief funding will end in the 2023-24 school year 
when the funding expires. Vic shard that district administration is working through 
staffing reductions that will be in place for the 2024-25 school year, and it is projected 
more staffing reductions will occur in the 2025-26 school year 6.  



Minutes 
March 13, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 

 
Mr. Roberts also presented a budget timeline showing June 26 as the date for the Board 
adoption of the 2024 – 2025 budget. 
 
President Galbraith announced a five-minute break at 7:44 p.m.  
 
The Board reconvened at 7:52 p.m. 
 

 K-12 Academic Progress Update 
  

Assistant Superintendent of Teaching & Learning Alyssa St. Hilaire presented data from 
academic assessments administered in the fall and winter along with updates on two key 
strategies the district is employing to improve student academic outcomes: Professional 
Learning Communities and an Assessment Pilot Study. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 None 
 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
 The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. 2024-25 Preliminary Budget 
B. Transportation – Annual Bus Purchase 
C. Asset Preservation/Capital Projects Update 
D. K-5 Math Adoption Recommendation 

  
The Board also identified topics for future meetings including the potential of having a 
committee look into options for mental health services and the Second Step digital program.  

 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 President Gabe Galbraith announced an end to the business portion of the meeting at 8:50 

p.m. He moved the Board into executive session at 8:56 p.m. per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g) to 
discuss the Deputy Successor Superintendent Applicant Evaluation for approximately 30 
minutes. Mr. Galbraith noted that no further formal action would be taken. At 9:26 p.m. Mr. 
Galbraith extended the executive session for an additional 40 minutes. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS AS AUTHORIZED BY LAW. 
 
 Mr. Galbraith reconvened the regular session of the Board at 10:06 p.m. and shared that no 



Minutes 
March 13, 2024 
Page 5 
 
 

decision was made to bring in candidates for interviews next week. Since there was no 
further business, the Board adjourned at 10:06 p.m. 

 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  March 27, 2024 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date
Britany Lewno-
Dumdie Special Services Psychologist Program Need 1.0

Contingent on 
certification

Araceli Cossio Ridge View Teacher - Elem Requesting LOA (2nd yr) 1.0 2024-25
Rebecca Maag SrHS Teacher - HS Requesting .4 LOA (2nd yr) 1.0 to .60 2024-25

Tammy Neslin SrHS Teacher - HS 1.0 8/20/2024
Kristine Gilman HMS Teacher - MS 1.0 6/12/2024
Guy Fleming Special Services Psychologist 1.0 4/1/2024
Shelby Romm Westgate Teacher - Elem 1.0 6/12/2024
Michelle Williams MCP Teacher - K-12 Resigning .30 of 1.0 0.7 6/12/2024
Carolyn Rieck Soutgate Teacher - Elem 1.0 6/12/2024
Suzanne Johansen Vista Teacher - Elem 1.0 5/9/2024
Melissa Knodel Amon Creek Teacher - Elem Sp Srvcs 1.0 6/12/2024
Matthew Smith Highlands MS Teacher - MS 1.0 Eff. 4/1/2024
Isabel Child MCP Teacher K-12 Resigning .22 of 1.0 0.78 6/12/2024
Brenda Reed Amistad Teacher - Elem 1.00 6/12/2024
Natalie Abersfeller KaHS Teacher - HS 1.00 3/22/2024

Alaina Fillafer Hawthorne Teacher - Elem Sp Srvcs Lindbloom move 1.0 2024-25
Lisa Brittain KDS Teacher - PS Sp Srvcs Peterson resignation 1.0 2024-25

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

REPLACEMENT

DATE:    Wednesday, March 27, 2024

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE

3/27/2024 Page 1



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Debbie Thompson Kamiakin Para/SS/LifeSkills 2-1 Replaces Chris Washam 6.5 2/29/2024

Lila Chavez Hawthorne Cook Replaces Kelly Higgins 6.0 3/4/2024

Jennifer Woods Washington Para/FP/LAP/BE Replaces Shari Frazier 6.0 3/11/2024

Richard Morley Transportation Bus Driver 4.33 2/26/2024

Romeo Castillo Ridge View Cook Replaces Dayra Carreon 3.0 3/25/2024

Claudia Ochoa Salazar ECEAP Para/ECEAP Replaces Kelly Bryant 8.0 3/18/2024

Grace Morby Canyon View Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Carol Dickson 6.0 3/18/2024

Debbra Evans Transportation Bus Attendant 3.5 3/5/2024

Sabrina Wood Nutrition Services Nutrition Services Secretary 6.0 4/8/2024

Leanne Minister Sunset View Custodian/Swing
Replaces Matthew 

Lesperance
8.0 3/15/2024

Danielle Mungaray Cottonwood Para/SS/LifeSkills
Replaces Tanner 

Southerland
6.5 3/11/2024

Kristin Bradford Amistad Para/SS/1-1/Physically Disabled Replaces Candace Bersosa 6.5 4/8/2024

Elida Leyva ECEAP ECEAP Early Learning Coach Replaces Regan Potter 8.0 3/14/2024

Nicholas Lindsey Washington Para/FP/LAP/BE
Replaces Catherine 

Massengale
6.5 3/6/2024

Dyana Johnson Kamiakin Para/SS/LifeSkills 2-1 Replaces Diane Ostrom 6.5 3/7/2024

Dayra Carreon Canyon View Para/SS/LifeSkills Program Need 6.5 3/6/2024

Stephanie Harman Hawthorne
Para/SS/Visually Impaired 

Support 1-1
Program Need 6.5 3/18/2024

Ahlesha Fitzgerald Kennewick Para/SS/Tier III Autism 1-1 Returning to position 6.5 3/19/2024

Regina Rannow Washington Para/FP/LAP Replaces Wendi Woebler 6.0 3/11/2024

Susan Young Southridge Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Dana Berkey 6.0 3/11/2024

NEW POSITONS

REPLACEMENT

REHIRE

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: March 27, 2024

3/27/2024 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Avery Reiboldt Southridge Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 2/26/2024

Charlie Richmond Southridge Para/SS/Tier III Autism 1-1 6.5 2/20/2024

Joceline Gallardo Cascade Para/FP/ELL/Bilingual 6.5 3/29/2024

Tracy Bryant Facilities Services MTS Secretary 6.0 2/26/2024

Elizabeth Barajas Amistad Cook To sub NS worker 6.0 2/29/2024

Rachel La Belle Legacy Para/FP/LAP 7.0 3/8/2024

Lindsie Olsen IT IT Help Desk/Field Tech 8.0 3/22/2024

Jayme Vondruska KDC Para/SS/Preschool To sub para 5.0

Aftyn McDonald MCP Para/MCP
To student teach; date 

correction
4.8 3/1/2024

Gisele Hernandez Chinook Para/SS/Resource Room 6.0 3/29/2024

Emily Power-Engstrom N/A Para To sub teach N/A 3/29/2024

Stephen Oneil Park Custodian/Swing 8.0 3/15/2024

RETURN FROM LOA

Kathleen Cianca ECEAP Para/ECEAP 8.0 3/27/2024TERMINATION

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

RETIREMENT

RESIGNED FROM LOA

RESIGNATION

3/27/2024 AM



Page 1 
 

 
EXTRACURRICULAR 

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 
Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   Wednesday, March 27,2024 
 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2023-2024 Sc Yr 
REPLACEMENTS Daniela Ramirez Horse Heaven Hills Assistant Softball Emergency Hire – Replaces Reilyn Davis - .5 FTE  2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Kennedy Storaci Park MS Assistant Baseball Emergency Hire – Replaces Dan Price - Retired  
2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 Heather Lee Desert Hills MS Assistant Track Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Megan Deines Desert Hills MS Assistant Track Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Amy Biglin Desert Hills MS Assistant Track Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Jonathan Mequet Chinook MS Assistant Track Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers (.67 FTE)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Jaid Lopez Chinook MS Assistant Track Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers (.33 FTE)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Kyra Kuhn Kamiakin HS Assistant Track Emergency Hire – Due to Numbers   2023-2024 Sc Yr 
 Shawn Harper Kennewick HS Assistant Football Replaces Michasel Bibe – (.5 FTE)  2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2024-2025 Sc Yr 
       2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

      2023-2024 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
      
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 
     2024-2025 Sc Yr 
     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

     2023-2024 Sc Yr 

 





































4!v
KENNEWICK

SCHOOL DISTRICT

Kennewick School District No. 17

Teaching and Learning Department
1000 W 4th Ave.

Kennewick, WA 99336
Phone: (509) 222-6423

FAX: (509) 585-3046
TO: Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent

Kennewick School District Board of Direction

FROM: Alyssa St. Hilaire
Assistant Superintendent

SUBJECT: Recommendation of Instructional Materials

DATE: March22,2204

In compliance with Kennewick School District Policy #23'10, the following instructional
material have gone through the approval process for the district and are now being
presented to the Kennewick School District Board of Directors for approval and adoption.
The malerials have completed the review process involving faculty, parenVcommunity
members, and cuniculum advisory committee, instructional material committee and the
assistant superintendent of teaching and learning.

Please see attached table for recommendations for board aooroval:
Al+444'SL Jlilate

Alyssa St. Hilaire
Assistant Superintendent of Teaching and Learning
(509) 222-5548
www. K 5o.o rR



Instructional Materials Gommittee

March2l.2024

4:00 p.m. - 5:30 p.m.

Attendance: Dave Elkins, Carla Zoerb, Leslie Sievers, Amanda Brown, Stu Ross, ieff Pieros, Amity
Frewing, Elida Alverez, Charlotte Hankins, Jeff Joggerst, Jared Lind, Gayle Hane, Johanna Gerry Tina
Brewer, sofia Del Toro, Katie Mauseth, and Chris Blackman. Linda Stephenson, Jo Jo Davis Madge
Peterson, Naomi Puckett, and Allison Dabler

Absent: Pete Frentzen, Jessica Robledo and John Solomon

CURRICULUM

TITLE AUTHOR PUBLISEER FORMAT DATE
PT'BLISEE

D

GRADE
LEVEL

DESCRIPTION ACTIONBY
IMC

DELTA
MATH

ZachKor4k Delta Math Digital 2009 grh _ 12th Supplemental
Material

Recommended

NOVET

TTILE AUTIIOR PUBLISSER FORMAT DATE
PIJBLISEEI)

GRADE
LEVEL

DESCRIPTIO
N

ACTIONBY
IMC

PEAK Roland Smith Harcourt Book 2007 6tt & 6s
Honors ELA

Novel Recommended

*The above novels are currently being used in the KSD 6th grade, 6th grade Honors ELA courses, however,
there is no documentation with the Teaching and Learning Department that they have been adopted.
The instructional materials committee has reviewed the materials and is recommending them for
adootion.



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 27, 2024 

 

 

 

Topic 2024-25 Preliminary Budget Information: Transporation Vehicle and Debt Service Funds 
Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
X 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Preliminary General Fund budget update on the Transportation Vehicle Fund and the Debt 
Service Fund is part of cycle of annual budget updates/presentations for the Board. The 
goal of the presentation is to inform the Board of the preliminary status Transportation 
Vehicle Debt Service Funds.  
 

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
X Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

 System accountability  
X Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Are there concerns or questions regarding the 2024-25 Transportation Vehicle or Debt 
Service Funds? 

Next Steps  • The Board will receive budget presentations throughout the months of March, April, 
and May. The Board will hold a public hearing and vote to formally adopt the budget 
on June 26, 2024. 
 



2024-25 
Preliminary Budget Update
Transportation Vehicle Fund

Debt Service Fund

March 27, 2024



Topic 
Overview

2



District Funds & Presentation Dates

3

• General Fund – March - May
• Associated Student Body Fund – May
• Capital Projects Fund – March - April
• Transportation Vehicle Fund – March
• Debt Service Fund – March
• Self-Insured Fund - May

• Workers’ Compensation
• Unemployment



4

• Purpose: Purchase of School Buses & Related Equipment
• District Revenue Sources

• State School Bus Depreciation
• Buses depreciated over 13 years
• State makes depreciation allocation payment to school districts to 

fund bus replacement

• Bus Fleet: 139 as of August 31, 2023, 8 new to be delivered August 
2024

• Propose purchase of 9 buses for delivery summer 2025

Transportation Vehicle Fund



5



6

• Purpose: Accumulation of resources for the payment of general long-term debt principal 
and interest

• Voter approved bonds authorize levy amount to be assessed on taxpayers to pay 
debt service

Debt Service Fund



7



• March - May: Budget Presentations
• June 26: Public Hearing & Adoption of District Budget

8

2024-25 Budget Timeline



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 27, 2024 

 

 

 

Topic Asset Preservation/Capital Projects Update 
Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
X 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

State law requires districts to implement an asset preservation program, conduct annual 
building condition evalations, and report scores to the Board by April 1 of each year. This 
presentation fulfills the requirement. No Board decision or approval is needed; the 
requirement is only to report to the Board. Building condition scores are also used to 
inform capital project priorities for future bonds, and more information will be shared at 
the May 8 meeting when the 10-year Capital Facility Plan is presented. In addition to 
completing the asset preservation report, a brief update on Ridge View and Tri-Tech will 
be shared.  
 

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

 Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
 Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role  X Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Are there concerns or questions regarding the asset preservation program?  

Next Steps  • An updated 10-year Capital Facility Plan will be presented May 8.   
 



Asset Preservation 
Program/Capital Projects 

Update
March 27, 2024

1



Topic 
Overview



WAC 392-347-023 and KSD Policy 9300
State funding assistance for post-1993 facilities

School districts with affected buildings under this chapter are required to:

• Adopt or implement and asset preservation system.
• Perform annual building condition evaluations, which shall include recording 

assessments in the Information and Condition of Schools (ICOS) system and reporting 
assessment scores to the school district’s board of directors not later than April 1 of each 
year.

• Ensure a certified evaluator completes a building condition evaluation every 6 years.
o Last certified evaluation was in March 2020

3

State Law and Policy Requirements



4

Building Assessment Scores

New Scoring System in 2018       Action
Excellent  100%  Range 95-100%  Routine Maintenance
Good   90%  Range 85-94%  Routine Maintenance
Fair   62%  Range 62-84%  Minor Repairs
Poor   30%  Range 30-61%  Major Repairs

Unsatisfactory  0%  Range 0-29%  Replacement

• 60 inspection points for each site
• Must maintain scores above 62% to maintain School Construction Assistance Program (SCAP) funding 

status



Asset Preservation Facilities

• Southridge High School  Main Building
• Desert Hills Middle School  Main Building
• Eastgate Elementary School  Main Building 
• Ridge View Elementary School Main Building
• Horse Heaven Hills Middle School Main Building
• Horse Heaven Hills Middle School Gymnasium
• Sage Crest Elementary School Main Building
• Cottonwood Elementary School Main Building
• Westgate Elementary School               Main Building

5

*In addition to the facilities designated for required reporting, the Kennewick School District 
assesses all school facilities



6

Building Assessment Scores
Southridge HVAC Example – HVAC Upgrades Scheduled for 2020-2021

2020

2022



Building Condition Evaluation / Study and Survey 
Results

LOCATION S & S 2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024
WASHINGTON (1957 B/1995 R) 70.00% 70.40% 70.40% 66.81% 66.93%
HAWTHORNE (1956 B/1995 R) 77.50% 77.50% 77.48% 73.15% 72.15%
VISTA (1961 B/1966 R/1998 R) 75.20% 75.20% 74.20% 75.84% 72.35%
PARK (1963 B/1999 R) 78.90% 78.90% 79.15%

Building 100 76.87% 75.02%
Building 200 76.24% 74.00%
Building 300 75.60% 74.62%
Building 400 75.58% 74.60%

HIGHLANDS (1959 B/1966 R/1994 R) 82.20% 82.17% 78.90% 77.18% 75.85%

EDISON (1960 B/1977 R/2001 R) 78.60% 78.60% 76.43% 76.17% 80.69%
HORSE HEAVEN HILLS (1993 B) 79.20% 79.18% 79.42%

Main Building 79.42% 79.94%
Gym 82.59% 83.91%

KEEWAYDIN DISCOVERY CENTER (2010 B/2019 A) 86.00% 85.96% 82.32% 82.00% 82.00%
SOUTHGATE (1978 B/2011 R) 88.40% 88.38% 88.36% 88.36% 83.90%

KAMIAKIN (1970 B/1981 R/2004 R/2021 A) 89.90% 89.90% 84.65%
Building 100 82.08%
Building 200 83.99%
Building 300 80.36%
Building 400 84.27%
Building 500 79.85%
Building 600 83.07%
Building 700 100.00%

SUNSET VIEW (1981 B/2012 R) 93.10% 93.10% 86.90% 86.82% 85.63%

CANYON VIEW (1978 B/2010 R) 89.50% 89.54% 88.14% 86.96% 86.96%
EASTGATE (2015 B) 99.80% 95.03% 94.44% 91.89% 89.68%
PHOENIX (1977 B/2013 R) 89.90% 89.90% 89.90% 89.90% 89.90%
COTTONWOOD (2010 B) 89.20% 89.24% 89.22% 88.63% 89.97%

CASCADE (1982 B/2013 R) 96.50% 96.49% 92.87% 90.10% 90.00%
LINCOLN (1983 B/2014 R) 98.80% 98.80% 92.26% 90.25% 90.00%
MID-COLUMBIA PARTNERSHIP (1977 B/ 2019 R) 99.20% 99.20% 92.63% 90.44% 90.44%
FUERZA (2018 B) 100.00% 100.00% 93.28% 90.89% 90.67%

SOUTHRIDGE HS (1996 B/2021 A) 82.30% 81.13% 89.85%
Main 86% 82.27%

Science Wing 100% 100.00%
CHINOOK (2016 B) 99.80% 99.75% 97.51% 92.75% 91.52%
DESERT HILLS MS (2016 B) 100.00% 99.26% 97.71% 94.60% 91.87%
LEGACY (2000 B/2019 R) 99.20% 99.20% 94.50% 92.57% 92.57%
AMON CREEK (2018 B) 100.00% 99.26% 94.50% 93.83% 93.56%
WESTGATE (2017 B) 100.00% 99.98% 97.61% 95.48% 93.63%
SAGE CREST (2016 B) 100.00% 98.17% 96.59% 95.33% 94.23%
KENNEWICK HIGH (2021 B) - - 100.00%

Main Building 100.00% 100.00%
Lions Den 87.46% 87.46%

AMISTAD (2020 B) - 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

RIDGEVIEW (1993 B) 76.20% 76.16% 76.16% -  N/A (100%)
FRUITLAND 69.40% 69.44% 72.00% 70.00% 70.00%

Asset Preservation - Six Year Cycle Results

2023             2024


Sheet1

		Building Condition Evaluation / Study and Survey Results		Asset Preservation - Six Year Cycle Results

		LOCATION		Match Eligible		S & S 2020		2017-2018		2018-2019		2019-2020		2020-2021		2021-2022		2022-2023

		WASHINGTON (1957 B/1995 R)		2025		70.00%		77%		76%		70.01%		70.40%		70.40%		66.81%

		FRUITLAND				69.40%		-		-		69.44%		69.44%		72.00%		70.00%

		HAWTHORNE (1956 B/1995 R)		2025		77.50%		77%		76%		77.48%		77.50%		77.48%		73.15%

		VISTA (1961 B/1966 R/1998 R)		2028		75.20%		81%		80%		75.16%		75.20%		74.20%		75.84%

		PARK (1963 B/1999 R)		2029		78.90%		78%		77%		82.00%		78.90%		79.15%

		Building 100																76.87%

		Building 200																76.24%

		Building 300																75.60%

		Building 400																75.58%

		EDISON (1960 B/1977 R/2001 R)		2031		78.60%		86%		85%		78.55%		78.60%		76.43%		76.17%

		HIGHLANDS (1959 B/1966 R/1994 R)		2024		82.20%		78%		76%		82.17%		82.17%		78.90%		77.18%

		HORSE HEAVEN HILLS (1993 B)		2023		79.20%		87%		90%		79.18%		79.18%		79.42%		79.42%



		KEEWAYDIN DISCOVERY CENTER (2010 B/2019 A)				86.00%		-		-		86.00%		85.96%		82.32%		82.00%

		HORSE HEAVEN HILLS GYM (1993 B)				82.50%		-		-		-		82.45%		80.15%		82.59%

		SUNSET VIEW (1981 B/2012 R)		2042		93.10%		97%		96%		93.08%		93.10%		86.90%		86.82%

		CANYON VIEW (1978 B/2010 R)		2040		89.50%		96%		84%		89.54%		89.54%		88.14%		86.96%

		SOUTHGATE (1978 B/2011 R)		2041		88.40%		89%		88%		88.36%		88.38%		88.36%		88.36%

		COTTONWOOD (2010 B)		2040		89.20%		91%		90%		89.24%		89.24%		89.22%		88.63%

		PHOENIX (1977 B/2013 R)		2043		89.90%		92%		91%		89.94%		89.90%		89.90%		89.90%



		CASCADE (1982 B/2013 R)		2043		96.50%		88%		87%		96.47%		96.49%		92.87%		90.10%

		LINCOLN (1983 B/2014 R)		2044		98.80%		91%		90%		98.79%		98.80%		92.26%		90.25%

		MID-COLUMBIA PARTNERSHIP (1977 B/ 2019 R)		2049		99.20%						99.21%		99.20%		92.63%		90.44%

		FUERZA (2018 B)		2048		100.00%				100%		98.00%		100.00%		93.28%		90.89%

		EASTGATE (2015 B)		2045		99.80%		96%		94%		98.57%		95.03%		94.44%		91.89%

		LEGACY (2000 B/2019 R)		2049		99.20%						99.15%		99.20%		94.50%		92.57%

		CHINOOK (2016 B)		2046		99.80%		100%		98%		99.15%		99.75%		97.51%		92.75%

		AMON CREEK (2018 B)		2048		100.00%				100%		98.00%		99.26%		94.50%		93.83%

		DESERT HILLS MS (2016 B)		2046		100.00%		100%		98%		97.00%		99.26%		97.71%		94.60%

		SAGE CREST (2016 B)		2046		100.00%		100%		98%		96.00%		98.17%		96.59%		95.33%

		WESTGATE (2017 B)		2047		100.00%				100%		98.00%		99.98%		97.61%		95.48%

		KENNEWICK HIGH (2021 B)		2051		-		-		-		-		-		100.00%		100.00%

		AMISTAD (2020 B)		2050		-						100.00%		100.00%		100.00%		100.00%

		KAMIAKIN (1970 B/1981 R/2004 R/2021 A)		2034		89.90%		84%		82%		89.87%		89.90%		84.65%

		Building 100

		Building 200

		Building 300

		Building 400

		Building 500

		Building 600

		Building 700

		SOUTHRIDGE HS (1996 B/2021 A)		2026		82.30%		91%		90%		81.31%		81.13%		89.85%

		Main																86%

		Science Wing																100%

		RIDGEVIEW (1993 B)		2023		76.20%		75%		74%		76.24%		76.16%		76.16%		-





Sheet1 (2)

		Building Condition Evaluation / Study and Survey Results		Asset Preservation - Six Year Cycle Results

		LOCATION		Match Eligible		S & S 2020		2017-2018		2018-2019		2019-2020		2020-2021		2021-2022		2022-2023		2023-2024

		WASHINGTON (1957 B/1995 R)		2025		70.00%		77%		76%		70.01%		70.40%		70.40%		66.81%		66.93%

		HAWTHORNE (1956 B/1995 R)		2025		77.50%		77%		76%		77.48%		77.50%		77.48%		73.15%		72.15%

		VISTA (1961 B/1966 R/1998 R)		2028		75.20%		81%		80%		75.16%		75.20%		74.20%		75.84%		72.35%

		PARK (1963 B/1999 R)		2029		78.90%		78%		77%		82.00%		78.90%		79.15%

		Building 100																76.87%		75.02%

		Building 200																76.24%		74.00%

		Building 300																75.60%		74.62%

		Building 400																75.58%		74.60%

		HIGHLANDS (1959 B/1966 R/1994 R)		2024		82.20%		78%		76%		82.17%		82.17%		78.90%		77.18%		75.85%



		EDISON (1960 B/1977 R/2001 R)		2031		78.60%		86%		85%		78.55%		78.60%		76.43%		76.17%		80.69%

		HORSE HEAVEN HILLS (1993 B)		2023		79.20%		87%		90%		79.18%		79.18%		79.42%

		Main Building																79.42%		79.94%

		Gym																82.59%		83.91%

		KEEWAYDIN DISCOVERY CENTER (2010 B/2019 A)				86.00%		-		-		86.00%		85.96%		82.32%		82.00%		82.00%

		SOUTHGATE (1978 B/2011 R)		2041		88.40%		89%		88%		88.36%		88.38%		88.36%		88.36%		83.90%

		KAMIAKIN (1970 B/1981 R/2004 R/2021 A)		2034		89.90%		84%		82%		89.87%		89.90%		84.65%

		Building 100																		82.08%

		Building 200																		83.99%

		Building 300																		80.36%

		Building 400																		84.27%

		Building 500																		79.85%

		Building 600																		83.07%

		Building 700																		100.00%

		SUNSET VIEW (1981 B/2012 R)		2042		93.10%		97%		96%		93.08%		93.10%		86.90%		86.82%		85.63%

		CANYON VIEW (1978 B/2010 R)		2040		89.50%		96%		84%		89.54%		89.54%		88.14%		86.96%		86.96%

		EASTGATE (2015 B)		2045		99.80%		96%		94%		98.57%		95.03%		94.44%		91.89%		89.68%

		PHOENIX (1977 B/2013 R)		2043		89.90%		92%		91%		89.94%		89.90%		89.90%		89.90%		89.90%

		COTTONWOOD (2010 B)		2040		89.20%		91%		90%		89.24%		89.24%		89.22%		88.63%		89.97%



		CASCADE (1982 B/2013 R)		2043		96.50%		88%		87%		96.47%		96.49%		92.87%		90.10%		90.00%

		LINCOLN (1983 B/2014 R)		2044		98.80%		91%		90%		98.79%		98.80%		92.26%		90.25%		90.00%

		MID-COLUMBIA PARTNERSHIP (1977 B/ 2019 R)		2049		99.20%						99.21%		99.20%		92.63%		90.44%		90.44%

		FUERZA (2018 B)		2048		100.00%				100%		98.00%		100.00%		93.28%		90.89%		90.67%

		SOUTHRIDGE HS (1996 B/2021 A)		2026		82.30%		91%		90%		81.31%		81.13%		89.85%

		Main																86%		82.27%

		Science Wing																100%		100.00%

		CHINOOK (2016 B)		2046		99.80%		100%		98%		99.15%		99.75%		97.51%		92.75%		91.52%

		DESERT HILLS MS (2016 B)		2046		100.00%		100%		98%		97.00%		99.26%		97.71%		94.60%		91.87%

		LEGACY (2000 B/2019 R)		2049		99.20%						99.15%		99.20%		94.50%		92.57%		92.57%

		AMON CREEK (2018 B)		2048		100.00%				100%		98.00%		99.26%		94.50%		93.83%		93.56%

		WESTGATE (2017 B)		2047		100.00%				100%		98.00%		99.98%		97.61%		95.48%		93.63%

		SAGE CREST (2016 B)		2046		100.00%		100%		98%		96.00%		98.17%		96.59%		95.33%		94.23%

		KENNEWICK HIGH (2021 B)		2051		-		-		-		-		-		100.00%

		Main Building																100.00%		100.00%

		Lions Den																87.46%		87.46%

		AMISTAD (2020 B)		2050		-						100.00%		100.00%		100.00%		100.00%		100.00%

		RIDGEVIEW (1993 B)		2023		76.20%		75%		74%		76.24%		76.16%		76.16%		-		 N/A (100%)

		FRUITLAND				69.40%		-		-		69.44%		69.44%		72.00%		70.00%		70.00%







8

Capital Projects 
Update



Project Substantial Completion: December 2023

Opened: January 3, 2024

Ribbon Cutting: January 17, 2024

Ridge View Elementary
Architect: Design West Architects
Contractor: Chervenell Construction Company
CM: Alliance Management and Construction Solutions






10

Design/Construction Drawings: June-Dec 2024
Multi-Phase Construction Begins: May 2025
Completion: December 2026

Scope: Modernization of the 66,000 sqft 
the 1981 Original Construction (Green)

Project Funds: ~$45M

Tri-Tech Core 
Modernization
Architect: Design West Architects
Contractor: TBD
CM: TBD

Auto Body Technology • Auto Systems Technology • Computer • Science/Cyber Security • Construction Trades • Cosmetology • 
Culinary Arts • Dental Assisting • Diesel Technology • Digital Arts & Filmmaking • Early Childhood Education • Fire Fighting & 

Emergency Medical Services • Law Enforcement • Pre-Electrical • Pre-Medical Assisting • Pre-Nursing • Pre-Physical Therapy • Pre-
Veterinary Technician • Radio Broadcasting • Video Game Design • Welding Technology

Future Programs (2027)
HVAC-Residential • Pre-Pharmacy Tech



Comments 
and 

Questions

11



Supplemental Documents
Study and Survey Results Overview

Example Detailed Condition Assessment Report



Building Condition Evaluation / Study and Survey Results

LOCATION S & S 2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024
WASHINGTON (1957 B/1995 R) 70.00% 70.40% 70.40% 66.81% 66.93%
HAWTHORNE (1956 B/1995 R) 77.50% 77.50% 77.48% 73.15% 72.15%
VISTA (1961 B/1966 R/1998 R) 75.20% 75.20% 74.20% 75.84% 72.35%
PARK (1963 B/1999 R) 78.90% 78.90% 79.15%

Building 100 76.87% 75.02%
Building 200 76.24% 74.00%
Building 300 75.60% 74.62%
Building 400 75.58% 74.60%

HIGHLANDS (1959 B/1966 R/1994 R) 82.20% 82.17% 78.90% 77.18% 75.85%

EDISON (1960 B/1977 R/2001 R) 78.60% 78.60% 76.43% 76.17% 80.69%
HORSE HEAVEN HILLS (1993 B) 79.20% 79.18% 79.42%

Main Building 79.42% 79.94%
Gym 82.59% 83.91%

KEEWAYDIN DISCOVERY CENTER (2010 B/2019 A) 86.00% 85.96% 82.32% 82.00% 82.00%
SOUTHGATE (1978 B/2011 R) 88.40% 88.38% 88.36% 88.36% 83.90%

KAMIAKIN (1970 B/1981 R/2004 R/2021 A) 89.90% 89.90% 84.65%
Building 100 82.08%
Building 200 83.99%
Building 300 80.36%
Building 400 84.27%
Building 500 79.85%
Building 600 83.07%
Building 700 100.00%

SUNSET VIEW (1981 B/2012 R) 93.10% 93.10% 86.90% 86.82% 85.63%

CANYON VIEW (1978 B/2010 R) 89.50% 89.54% 88.14% 86.96% 86.96%
EASTGATE (2015 B) 99.80% 95.03% 94.44% 91.89% 89.68%
PHOENIX (1977 B/2013 R) 89.90% 89.90% 89.90% 89.90% 89.90%
COTTONWOOD (2010 B) 89.20% 89.24% 89.22% 88.63% 89.97%

CASCADE (1982 B/2013 R) 96.50% 96.49% 92.87% 90.10% 90.00%
LINCOLN (1983 B/2014 R) 98.80% 98.80% 92.26% 90.25% 90.00%
MID-COLUMBIA PARTNERSHIP (1977 B/ 2019 R) 99.20% 99.20% 92.63% 90.44% 90.44%
FUERZA (2018 B) 100.00% 100.00% 93.28% 90.89% 90.67%

SOUTHRIDGE HS (1996 B/2021 A) 82.30% 81.13% 89.85%
Main 86% 82.27%

Science Wing 100% 100.00%
CHINOOK (2016 B) 99.80% 99.75% 97.51% 92.75% 91.52%
DESERT HILLS MS (2016 B) 100.00% 99.26% 97.71% 94.60% 91.87%
LEGACY (2000 B/2019 R) 99.20% 99.20% 94.50% 92.57% 92.57%
AMON CREEK (2018 B) 100.00% 99.26% 94.50% 93.83% 93.56%
WESTGATE (2017 B) 100.00% 99.98% 97.61% 95.48% 93.63%
SAGE CREST (2016 B) 100.00% 98.17% 96.59% 95.33% 94.23%
KENNEWICK HIGH (2021 B) - - 100.00%

Main Building 100.00% 100.00%
Lions Den 87.46% 87.46%

AMISTAD (2020 B) - 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

RIDGEVIEW (1993 B) 76.20% 76.16% 76.16% -  N/A (100%)
FRUITLAND 69.40% 69.44% 72.00% 70.00% 70.00%

Asset Preservation - Six Year Cycle Results



Edison Elementary School - Main Building

School Facilities and Organization
INFORMATION AND CONDITION OF SCHOOLS
Detailed Condition Assessment by Building 
Reporting Year 2023-2024

Kennewick
80.69

Building Details
PROFILE TYPE Elementary School - Single Story

NUMBER OF FLOORS 2

CHARACTERISTICS Occupied

COMMENTS Building had an addition in 1977 and was remodeled in 
2001

Building Inventory
AREA YEAR

BUILT
DISTRICT ASSIGNED 

AREA
GROSS BUILDING

SQ FT
GROSS INSTRUCTIONAL SQ FT SCAP RECOGNIZED

SQ FT
ORIGINAL OCCUPANCY 

DATE
ORIGINAL BOARD 
ACCEPTANCE DATE

1960 Area 2 21,665 21,665 21,665

1960 Area 1 7,344 7,344 7,344

1960 Basement 262 262 262

1977 Area 3 17,535 17,535 17,535

Building Totals 46,806 46,806 46,806

Building Components
SUB-ASSEMBLY COMPONENT COMPONENT

CODE
MAINTENANCE 

PRIORITY
CONDITION

RATING
Foundations Standard Foundation A1010 90.00% Good

Slabs on Grade Standard Slabs on Grade A4010 90.00% Good

Water and Gas Mitigation Building Subdrainage A6010 90.00% Good

Superstructure Roof Construction B1020 90.00% Good

Exterior Vertical Enclosures Exterior Walls B2010 90.00% Good

Deficiencies: Cracking, Peeling, Flaking
Causes: Surface Damage

School Facilities and Organization Generated: Mar 21, 2024 Page 26 of 155

Ryan.Jones
Stamp



Building Components
SUB-ASSEMBLY COMPONENT COMPONENT

CODE
MAINTENANCE 

PRIORITY
CONDITION

RATING
Exterior Vertical Enclosures Comments: Minor surface cracking. 

Exterior Windows B2020 90.00% Good

Exterior Doors and Grilles B2050 90.00% Good

Exterior Louvers and Vents B2070 90.00% Good

Exterior Horizontal Enclosures Roofing B3010 90.00% Good

Comments:

Roof Appurtenances B3020 90.00% Good

Horizontal Openings B3060 90.00% Good

Overhead Exterior Enclosures B3080 90.00% Good

Interior Construction Interior Partitions C1010 90.00% Good

Interior Windows C1020 90.00% Good

Interior Doors C1030 90.00% Good

Interior Grilles and Gates C1040 90.00% Good

Raised Floor Construction C1060 90.00% Good

Suspended Ceiling Construction C1070 90.00% Good

Interior Finishes Wall Finishes C2010 90.00% Good

Interior Fabrications C2020 90.00% Good

Flooring C2030 90.00% Good

Ceiling Finishes C2050 90.00% Good

Plumbing Domestic Water Distribution D2010 90.00% Good

Sanitary Drainage D2020 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Worn but functional with an occasional 

clogging
Building Support Plumbing 
Systems

D2030 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Warn systems, occasional blockage

HVAC Facility Fuel Systems D3010 90.00% Good

Comments:

School Facilities and Organization Generated: Mar 21, 2024 Page 27 of 155

Ryan.Jones
Stamp



Building Components
SUB-ASSEMBLY COMPONENT COMPONENT

CODE
MAINTENANCE 

PRIORITY
CONDITION

RATING
HVAC Heating Systems D3020 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Worn system, older energy controls.

Cooling Systems D3030 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Worn System, older energy contols

Facility HVAC Distribution 
Systems

D3050 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: System worn, older energy controls

Ventilation D3060 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: System worn, older energy controls

Fire Protection Fire Suppression D4010 90.00% Good

Fire Protection Specialties D4030 90.00% Good

Electrical Facility Power Generation D5010 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Worn System, reliable but of marginal 

capacity
Electrical Services and 
Distribution

D5020 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Worn System, reliable but of marginal 

capacity
General Purpose Electrical Power D5030 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Worn System, reliable but of marginal 

capacity

School Facilities and Organization Generated: Mar 21, 2024 Page 28 of 155

Ryan.Jones
Stamp



Building Components
SUB-ASSEMBLY COMPONENT COMPONENT

CODE
MAINTENANCE 

PRIORITY
CONDITION

RATING
Electrical Lighting D5040 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Worn System, not all fixtures and 

controls are updated for current energy 
efficiency.

Communications Data Communications D6010 90.00% Good

Voice Communications D6020 90.00% Good

Audio-Video Communications D6030 90.00% Good

Distributed Communications and 
Monitoring

D6060 90.00% Good

Electronic Safety and Security Access Control and Intrusion 
Detection

D7010 90.00% Good

Electronic Surveillance D7030 90.00% Good

Detection and Alarm D7050 90.00% Good

Integrated Automation Integrated Automation Facility 
Controls

D8010 90.00% Good

Equipment Commercial Equipment E1030 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Age Deterioration
Comments: Equipment is worn but functional.

Institutional Equipment E1040 90.00% Good

Comments:

Entertainment and Recreational 
Equipment

E1070 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Equipment is worn but functional.

Other Equipment E1090 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Equipment is worn but functional.

Furnishings Fixed Furnishings E2010 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other

School Facilities and Organization Generated: Mar 21, 2024 Page 29 of 155

Ryan.Jones
Stamp



Building Components
SUB-ASSEMBLY COMPONENT COMPONENT

CODE
MAINTENANCE 

PRIORITY
CONDITION

RATING
Furnishings Comments: Furniture is worn but functional.

Movable Furnishings E2050 62.00% Fair

Deficiencies: Other
Causes: Other
Comments: Movable furniture is worn but 

functional.

School Facilities and Organization Generated: Mar 21, 2024 Page 30 of 155

Ryan.Jones
Stamp



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 27, 2024 

  

  

 

Topic Transportation Department – Annual Bus Purchase Plan  
Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
X 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

Each spring, transportation provides a department update and presents a bus surplus and 
purchase plan to the Board for approval. The presentation provides updated ridership and 
mileage data, information on current fleet and depreciation, and information on past bus 
purchases.  
 

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
X Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role   Policy   

X System accountability  
X Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Is the purchase recommendation in alignment with past years? 
• Does the budget accommodate the purchase plan? 

 
 

Next Steps  • The Board votes to accept or reject the recommendation to authorize the 
transportation director to order nine buses for delivery summer 2025.  
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

VIC ROBERTS • Director of Business Operations 
1000 W. 4TH AVE. • KENNEWICK, WA 99336-5601 
P: (509) 222-5040  
Vic.Roberts@ksd.org  WWW.KSD.ORG 
 

 
DATE:  March 27, 2024 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Vic Roberts, Executive Director, Business Operations 

RE:  Authorize Purchase of Nine Buses for Delivery Summer 2025 
Transportation Director April Heiser is finalizing an order to purchase nine buses for 
delivery for summer 2025 to replace older buses that have been in service from 2004 
and replace buses with the highest cost per mile. Plans are to surplus 9 buses. The 
current fleet on August 31, 2024, was 139 Buses. 

Past bus purchase history (delivery year/# purchased): 
 

       
 
Estimated Bus Purchase Cost: 

 
The cost will be charged to the 2024/2025 budget. Transportation ending cash at 
August 31, 2024 is projected at $550,000. In August 2025, the district expects to receive 
$1,500,000 from the state for bus replacement for a total of $2,050,000 to apply toward 
the purchase of nine buses.    

Recommendation:  Authorize the transportation director to order nine buses for 
delivery summer 2025. 

mailto:Vic.Roberts@ksd.org


Transportation 
Department

Annual Bus Purchase Plan

March 27, 2024



Topic 
Overview 



Transportation 
Department

• 126 Bus Drivers 
• 39 Bus Attendants
• 7 Mechanics & 1 Shop 

Foreman
• 4 Dispatchers/Routers
• 2 Transportation 

Secretaries
• Transportation 

Coordinator
• Assistant Director
• Director 



2022-2023 
Student Counts & Annual Mileage 

Student counts submitted to OSPI last year:
• Fall 10,618
• Winter 10,659
• Spring 10,602

Mileage report submitted was 2,180,720
• To/from school 1,892,418
• Field trip     127,541
• Extra curricular    136,968
• Summer school      23,793



Fleet Summary & Depreciation
• 139 Buses on our fleet as of today with 8 additional buses being delivered in 

August 2024.

• 121 buses currently on the depreciation schedule. 

• Type C and Type D category bus – 13 years for the State to completely 
reimburse the base cost of a bus without district options.

• 12.9% of our buses are off the depreciation schedule.
• Most buses stay in service for 20 years.

• Requesting to surplus 9 buses from 2004 to 2006.



Electric Vehicle Mandate

• State and federal grants are currently closed but should reopen fall 2024

• 2026 mandated deadline date to purchase electric buses was removed

• HB 1368 requires OSPI and Department of Ecology to create a method to determine “Total 
cost of ownership” for electric buses to include electric bus, infrastructure, charging and 
maintenance
o When total cost of owning electric vehicle (EV) buses is determined to be below total 

cost of owning diesel buses, districts will be required to purchase EV buses.

• Purchase cost of electric buses (no options included)
o Schetky NW $524,190 and reimbursed price is $393,347  



Air Conditioning

• Priority:  Purchase enough buses with air conditioning to support our 
summer school programs

o After summer 2024 - we will have 15 air-conditioned buses

o Target is 25 – 30 for supporting summer school



Past Bus 
Purchase 
History 



2024 Bus Purchase Plan 
Estimated Bus Purchase Cost:

• The cost will be charged to the 2024/2025 budget.
• Transportation ending cash at August 31, 2024, is projected at $550,000. 
• In August 2025, the district expects to receive $1,500,000 from the state for bus replacement for a total 

of $2,050,000 to apply toward the purchase of nine buses.  

Recommendation:  
Authorize transportation director to order nine buses for delivery summer 2025.



Board Questions 
and 

Discussion



 
 
    Board Meeting Presentation Overview  
  Date: March 27, 2024 

  

  

Topic K-5 Math Adoption Recommendation 
Strategic Goal 
Focus 

 
 1. All students are safe, known and valued   
X 2. All students are engaged learners   
 3. All students are ready for their future 
 4. All staff members are safe, respected and valued professionals  
 5. All community members are important collaborators   
 6. All families are key partners  
 7. The district is innovative, proactive and accountable  

 

Rationale for 
Topic/Purpose of 
Agenda Item 

One of the 2023-24 Annual Objectives tied to our goal, “All students are engaged learners” 
is to “conduct curriculum review, instructional materials assessment, amd adoption of K-5 
mathematics.” A committee has been working throughout the year, and a final materials 
recommendation is now being presented to the Board for approval. 
  

Board Meeting 
Focus  X Review Information 

X Hold discussion 
 Provide direction 
X Make decision 

 

Relevance to 
Board’s Role  X Policy   

X System accountability  
 Fiscal oversight  
 Communication  
 Advocacy  

 
Per policy 2310, Selection and Adoption of 
Instructional Materials, the Board  is legally 
responsible for the selection of all instructional 
materials used in the district. 
 

 
 

Key 
Considerations 
for Board 
Discussion   

• Were all vetting and review processes as specified in policy and procedure 2310/2310 
R appropriately followed? 

• Is the purchase fiscally responsible?  
 
 

Next Steps  • The Board votes to accept or reject the recommendation to adopt Carnegie Learning’s 
ClearMath Elementary K-5 materials.  
 



K-5 Math Adoption: 
Recommendation  

March 27, 2024



Topic Overview



Presentation 
Outline
• Background and 

rationale for K-5 
math adoption

• Presentation of 
review process 
and ClearMath 
Elementary (K-5) 
materials

• Recommendation 
for approval





January 11, 
2023, Board 

Retreat



Rationale for 
accelerating 
timeline for 
adopting K-5 
math materials 
by three years

Outcomes: Current instructional 
materials for K-5 math are not getting 
expected learning outcomes.

Funding: We can access ESSR/Covid 
relief funds until 2024.

Capacity: We have capacity to complete 
the review since the scheduled Arts and 
Dual 6-8 adoptions are smaller scale.



2022-23 Smarter Balanced Assessment 
% of students meeting grade level math standards 

Source: OSPI Report Card



KSD Curriculum Adoption Cycle

22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29

Math K-5 Review/Preview Adopt Implement

22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27 27-28 28-29

Math K-5 Review/Preview 
2nd Semester 
and Summer

Adopt Implement Review/Preview Adopt Implement



Strategies to improve student outcomes:

CURRICULUM INSTRUCTION ASSESSMENT



K-5 Math Adoption Commitee

• Teacher on Special Assignment: Dave Elkins

• K-5 Classroom Teachers (94): All K-5 staff had an opportunity for 
review and input on the selection of materials. 

• Principals/Assistant Principals (5)

• Central Office Staff (6)

*Many other parents were part of the final evaluation process of the 
selected materials (45+ parents total)



Major Parameters Guiding Our Selection:

• The publisher must be able to provide ongoing professional 
development.  The curriculum must be professional 
development friendly for teachers (implemented at a high 
level by teachers with a minimal amount of intensive and 
ongoing professional development if at all possible).

• The curriculum must be parent-friendly and understandable 
in a manner that parents can support their child’s learning.

• There must be strong alignment with Washington State 
Learning Standards for Math. 



Timeline

• The committee twice monthly beginning in September (2023) and 
continuing through February (2024).

• The comprehensive parent evaluations were completed February 12.

• The materials were presented to the Instructional Materials Committee 
(IMC) for consideration on February 15.

• The public display was February 19 to March 1.

• Materials presented to the School Board for approval consideration in 
March.



Recommendation: 

Carnegie Learning’s 
ClearMath Elementary (K-5) 



Carnegie Learning ClearMath Elementary (K-5)

A research-driven, blended learning 
solution that turns children’s natural 
curiosity into meaningful math learning. 
Powered by play and designed to help 
students grow into confident and excited 
math thinkers.

https://www.carnegielearning.com/solutions/math/



Carnegie Learning ClearMath Elementary (K-5)

Results rooted in research

ClearMath Elementary nurtures children into high-
achieving, creative math thinkers with a research-
backed approach focused on how learning occurs. 
Intentionally developed lessons strengthen 
executive functioning skills and allow students to 
transfer new knowledge outside of a single concept, 
giving them a deep understanding of math and how 
it appears in the world around them.

https://www.carnegielearning.com/solutions/math/elementary-math-solution/



Carnegie Learning ClearMath Elementary (K-5)

Tools tailored to teachers
Straightforward supports are designed with 
educators in mind, so all teachers can implement 
with ease, and more importantly, teach with 
confidence. Lessons and center activities allow 
teachers to engage students with new concepts, 
supported by point-of-use facilitation notes, digital 
tools, and ongoing assessment opportunities. The 
unique instructional approach gives educators the 
opportunity to teach new skills over a series of 
interactive lessons, then pause to allow students to 
reflect on and expand their learning.
 

https://www.carnegielearning.com/solutions/math/elementary-math-solution/



Carnegie Learning ClearMath Elementary (K-5)

More Math Moments
With creative problem-solving and mental math 
routines, and imaginative MATHia Adventure digital 
games, mathematical thinking is intentionally 
interwoven throughout the day to make meaningful 
learning happen anytime—not just when it’s 
scheduled. 

https://www.carnegielearning.com/solutions/math/elementary-math-solution/



Carnegie Learning ClearMath Elementary (K-5)

Program Strengths
• Aligned to state math standards
• Hands-on learning activities/numerous opportunities to use manipulatives 
• Engaging lessons
• A blend of direct instruction and collaborative understanding-building 
• Re-engagement lessons to support struggling students 



Staff  Feedback

LOVING it!!! This is week 4 of using ClearMath and I love it just as 
much as I did at the start, maybe more. The math is engaging, of 
course, but also gives kids multiple opportunities to practice with a 
beautiful blend of direct instruction and collaborative understanding-
building. I really don’t want to go back to using anything else this year.

I do see progress, especially with a couple kids who were struggling.

I love how the hands on the lessons.

The assessment and ratings daily are a huge help! 

Kids are loving the engagement. Getting to use more concrete 
materials (base ten) to really understand and relate the numbers and 
place value to SOMETHING.

The slides are really helpful.

I love each step of the lesson because it scaffolds and allows reteach 
when needed. 

Staff Feedback



Staff  Feedback
I love how you layout the of mastery that goes with each standard so we 
can continuously assess how the kids are doing with that specific 
standard.  

 I love how easy it was to pull groups on Re-Engage days and how easily 
the centers were already ready for us.

I love the language used for fractions before going to fraction notation 

My experience with ClearMath has been exceptional. My students are 
learning and when they struggle, there are good opportunities to 
intervene.  

My kids have really enjoyed clear math! They love it.

I believe Clear Math would be difficult for our kids starting off, but I know 
they could get there, as I feel it is the best one.

I feel very strongly that Clear Math meets our needs the best.

Staff Feedback







Community Member and Family Feedback
27/31 Parent-Community Reviewers – Recommended without Reservation

Can’t wait to hear how much my kids will like the material.

Great materials! So excited for kids to get them in their hands!

I appreciate the additional materials for all grade levels and teacher guides

I'm excited to see the students thriving with the new materials.

Looks engaging and follows state standards.

Looks great so far!
Lots of great strategies to come at topics from multiple perspectives. I like the multiple ways page numbers are depicted. 
Are the online materials available to students from personal devices (computer or tablet)? Talking with teachers who 
have been using ClearMath, I am happy to learn that the physical materials are provided, and that resources needed for 
each lesson are clearly labeled and organized to facilitate teacher prep. The beginning of the teacher volumes addresses 
how the teacher can approach the lessons and interactions with students. I hope the district will provide the time and 
resources to enable teachers to internalize the teaching style presented in ClearMath.



Community Member and Family Feedback
27/31 Parent-Community Reviewers – Recommended without Reservation

Love it!
Love the problem solving
Provides an opportunity for the student to learn at their own pace. Provides the student the opportunity to reflect 
on and gauge their understanding of the lesson, giving them a voice regarding their learning.
The materials look great. I love the hands-on aspect.
The materials seem to give a wide variety of options to challenge students. Hearing overwhelmingly positive 
opinions of a few teachers who have been using some of the lessons, I am supportive of the implementation of 
this new math curriculum.
The teachers who have started using ClearMath who are present at this Math Adoption Meeting seem to really like 
this curriculum and spoke passionately about implementing it. This gives me confidence as my daughter enters 
Kindergarten next year that she will be challenged and have fun with her peers while learning.



Community Member and Family Feedback
4/31 Recommended with Reservation

The curriculum looks engaging. My concern and the reason I can only recommend with reservation is because not 
all of the material will be ready when school starts next year. I know the curriculum wants to have everything 
ready but not having the Spanish teacher guides ready for school and potentially not having the dual language 
program using the curriculum is a downside for me.
The teacher edition was rather jumbled, doesn't provide enough examples of varied student response options.

Hope all material is available to be used (i.e. manipulatives)
Again, could be the grade levels, but seems to be heavier on verbal and less focused on numbers than expected. 
The curriculum does seem pretty consistent with current methods with blocks, math fact patterns, etc. Teachers 
did well at addressing concerns and explaining implementation expectations.



Public Display - February 19 through March 1, 2024 

People interested in reviewing the  K-5 curriculum materials being proposed for district-wide adoption in Kennewick 
had an opportunity to review them from 8:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. at the following locations:

Administration Office     Washington Elementary

Westgate Elementary     Sage Crest Elementary

Vista Elementary      Amon Creek Elementary

  

The materials were on display for the required 10-day public display period. (Policy #2310)



Proposed costs: Just over $2 million dollars for 5 years

• Textbooks
• Digital Subscriptions
• Consumable Workbooks
• Replacement Manipulatives
• Initial Training
• Onsite coaching and support 

throughout year 1 implementation



Board Questions and 
Discussion



Recommendation

• The School Board accepts the Math Adoption and Instructional 
Material Committee’s recommendation to adopt Carnegie 
Learning ClearMath Elementary for grades K-5.  

 


	School Board Agenda 03 27 24
	CONSENT ITEMS
	School Board Meeting Minutes 03 13 24
	Personnel Action Items - Certificated
	Personnel Action Items - Classified
	Personnel Action Items - Extracurricular
	Out of Endorsement Teacher Plans 2023-24
	Budget Status Report Ending February 29, 2024
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending February 29, 2024
	Recommendation Instructional Material

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	2024-25 Preliminary Budget
	Asset Preservation/Capital Projects Update

	NEW BUSINESS
	Transportation - Annual Bus Purchase
	K-5 Math Adoption Recommendation




